DO NOT REMOVE FROM FILE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA NO. 20-0225

(Circuit Court Civil Action No. 19-AA-106)

FILE COPY

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. Mr. Null did not demand a blood test, and in so finding, the circuit court substituted its judgment for that of the fact finder and improperly demonstrated a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence.
- 2. This court's judicially created remedy for violations of W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) in *Reed v. Hall* and *Reed v. Divita* should be reversed because it thwarts the purpose of the administrative sanctions for DUI and lets impaired drivers avoid license revocations by excluding all relevant evidence of DUI.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On May 26, 2014, at approximately 5:24 p.m., Trooper First Class J. S. Pauley, formerly of the West Virginia State Police, the Investigating Officer in this matter, observed a blue Ford Contour traveling 60 miles per hour ("mph") in a posted 50 mph zone on Route 60 in the Spring Hill area of Kanawha County, West Virginia. (App¹. at P. 142.) The Investigating Officer stopped the Ford and identified the driver as Douglas H. Null, the Respondent herein. *Id.* Mr. Null had normal speech, had bloodshot eyes, was normal exiting the vehicle, was unsteady while walking to the roadside, was unsteady while standing, admitted to smoking a bowl of marijuana and had a bowl with burnt residue inside his vehicle. (App. at P. 143.)

The Investigating Officer explained and administered the Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus Test to Mr. Null. *Id.* Prior to administering the test, the Investigating Officer conducted a medical assessment of Mr. Null's eyes which indicated that Mr. Null was a viable candidate for the test because he had equal pupils, no resting nystagmus, and equal tracking of his eyes. *Id.* During the test, Mr. Null exhibited lack of smooth pursuit, distinct and sustained nystagmus at maximum deviation, and the onset of nystagmus prior to an angle of 45 degrees in both eyes. *Id.* The Investigating Officer

¹ App. refers to the *Appendix* filed contemporaneously with the *Brief of the Division of Motor Vehicles*.

administered the Vertical Nystagmus Test, and Mr. Null exhibited impairment on this test because he exhibited distinct and sustained nystagmus at maximum elevation. *Id.*

The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the Walk-and-Turn Test to Mr. Null. *Id.* During the instruction stage, Mr. Null could not keep his balance and started the test too soon. *Id.* During the test, Mr. Null exhibited impairment because he stepped off the line, made an improper turn, and raised his arms to balance. *Id.* The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the One Leg Stand Test. (App., at P. 144.) Mr. Null exhibited impairment on this test because he swayed while balancing, used his arms to balance, hopped, and put his foot down. *Id.*

The Investigating Officer had reasonable grounds to believe that Mr. Null was DUI, arrested him, and transported him to Thomas Memorial Hospital for a blood draw at the request of the Investigating Officer. (App. at P. 145.) Mr. Null submitted to the Investigating Officer's request, and at 5:55 p.m., phlebotomist Lindsey Edmond drew a sample of Mr. Null's blood which the Investigating Officer submitted to the West Virginia State Police Laboratory for analysis. (App. at PP. 145, 147.)

After the blood draw, the Investigating Officer transported Mr. Null to the West Virginia State Police Detachment in South Charleston for processing. (App. at P. 146.) Mr. Null voluntarily completed a post-arrest interview during which he admitted to operating a vehicle and being under the influence of drugs, namely: marijuana. *Id.* Mr. Null signed the interview form after it was completed. *Id.*

On June 24, 2014, the Division of Motor Vehicles ("DMV") sent Mr. Null an *Order of Revocation* for DUI of alcohol, controlled substances and/or drugs. (App. at P. 62.) On July 16, 2014, the Office of Administrative Hearing ("OAH") received Mr. Null's request for an

administrative hearing. (App. at P. 64.) Mr. Null did not dispute the allegation that he was driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, controlled substances and/or drugs. *Id.* His only challenge was to the "results of the secondary chemical test of the blood, breath or urine." *Id.*

On March 4, 2016, the OAH conducted an administrative hearing. (App. at P. 201.) Mr. Null was the only witness at the hearing, and he testified. (App. at P. 203). Also, at the administrative hearing, it was unrebutted that after the termination of the companion criminal case, the State Police lab halted testing of the blood sample at the request of the prosecutor's office. (App. at PP. 207-208.) The documents submitted by the Investigating Officer to the DMV at the end of his investigation (App. at PP. 142-148) were admitted into the record as evidence pursuant to W. Va. Code § 29A-5-2(b) (1964) and indicated that the Investigating Officer requested that Mr. Null submit to a blood test. (App. at PP. 145, 207, 209.)

Although Mr. Null admitted to the Investigating Officer on the day of his arrest that he smoked marijuana (App. at PP. 143, 146) and although he filed a *Hearing Request Form* that challenged only the "results of the secondary chemical test of the blood, breath or urine" (App. at P. 64), at the administrative hearing, Mr. Null testified that he requested a blood test . . . "because it was going to prove my innocence." (App. at PP. 213, 215.)

On August 15, 2019, the OAH entered a *Final Order*. (App. at PP. 156-162.) The OAH found as fact that the Investigating Officer lawfully arrested Mr. Null for driving while under the influence ("DUI") of alcohol, controlled substances, drugs or a combination of the aforementioned (App. at P. 157, FOF 7) and "had reasonable grounds to believe that Mr. Null was driving or attempting to drive a motor vehicle while under the influence or impaired by alcohol, drugs, a controlled substance, or any combination of the aforementioned" because Mr. Null had bloodshot

eyes, was unsteady while walking and unsteady while standing, admitted that he had smoked a bowl of marijuana and there was a bowl with burnt residue in Mr. Null's vehicle. (App. at P. 157, FOF 2.) The OAH further found that the Investigating Officer observed impairment detection clues during Mr. Null's performance on the standardized field sobriety tests. (App. at P. 157, FOF 5.) Finally, the OAH also found that "[b]ecause the Investigating Officer suspected [Mr. Null] was under the influence of controlled substances and/or drug, he requested [Mr. Null] submit to a blood draw", and Mr. Null agreed. (App. at P. 158.)

Although the OAH found that there was evidence of driving, evidence of consumption, evidence of impairment and that the Investigating Officer requested the blood draw, it reversed the Commissioner's *Order of Revocation* for DUI because "it is the position of the Chief Hearing Examiner that an individual who voluntarily submits to a blood sample at the request of the Investigating Officer should be afforded the same due process protections as those who demand a blood test. Therefore, given this precedent, [Mr. Null] was denied the ability to present potentially, exculpatory evidence of his blood and was, therefore, denied due process rights under W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 when the blood sample analysis was cancelled before the testing was completed." (App. at P. 159.) In making its conclusions, the OAH relied on this Court's decision in *Reed v. Hall*, 235 W. Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 666 (2015) and *Reed v. Divita*, No. 14-11018, 2015 WL 5514209 (W. Va. Sept. 18, 2015) (memorandum decision). (App. at P. 159.)

On September 16, 2019, the DMV filed a *Petition for Judicial Review* (App. at PP. 31-55) with the Circuit Court of Kanawha County alleging that the clear evidence of DUI was determinative of the matter and that W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) is inapplicable because Mr. Null did not demand a blood draw. On February 14, 2020, the circuit court entered its final order. (App. at PP.

2-9.) The circuit court concluded that

it appears from the testimony of Mr. Null, the only witness to testify at the hearing below, that he, and not the Investigating Officer, requested the blood draw. This Court is hesitant to disregard the live testimony of an individual placed under oath in favor of a piece of paper. Therefore, [Reed v. Hall, 235 W. Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 666 (2015)] is directly on point and the OAH decision must be affirmed because Mr. Null was denied the ability to present potentially exculpatory evidence of his blood and was, therefore, denied due process rights under W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 when the blood sample analysis was cancelled before the testing was completed.

(App. at P. 7.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The DMV proved by a preponderance of the evidence the statutory requirements to show that Mr. Null drove a motor vehicle in this state while under the influence of controlled substances or drugs. The OAH found as fact that Mr. Null was driving, that he consumed marijuana, that he exhibited impairment, and that he was lawfully arrested. The OAH ignored the substantial evidence of DUI even though Mr. Null did not request or demand a blood test as required by the plain language of W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013). In finding that Mr. Null had demanded a blood test, the circuit court substituted its judgment for that of the fact finder and improperly demonstrated a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence. Because Mr. Null did not demand a blood test, this Court's opinions in *Hall, supra*, and *Divita, supra*, are inapplicable to this matter, and the circuit court was clearly wrong to find that Mr. Null's due process rights were violated.

Assuming, arguendo, that this Court determines that Mr. Null demanded a blood draw or that Hall and Divita apply to an officer requested blood draw case, this Court should revisit those cases. The remedy applied by the OAH and the circuit court was not provided by the Legislature, and the rescission of the license revocation solely on the basis that Mr. Null did not receive a blood analysis

thwarts the purpose of the administrative license revocation proceeding when the substantial evidence proves that he committed the offense of DUI.

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION

Argument pursuant to Rev. R. App. Pro. 20 (2010) is appropriate on the basis that this case involves a matter of fundamental public importance which is currently on appeal before this Court in the following matters: *Frazier v. Agin* (No. 20-0038), *Frazier v. Bowman* (No. 20-0034), *Frazier v. Raschella* (No. 20-0103), *Frazier v. Talbert* (No. 20-0134), *Frazier v. Workman* (No. 20-0035), *Frazier v. Bragg* (No. 19-0519), *Frazier v. Fazio* (No. 20-0102), *Frazier v. Fowler* (No. 20-0076), *Frazier v. Murphy* (No. 20-0092), and *Warner v. Frazier* (No. 20-0199).

ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

"On appeal of an administrative order from a circuit court, this Court is bound by the statutory standards contained in W. Va. Code § 29A-5-4(a) and reviews questions of law presented *de novo*; findings of fact by the administrative officer are accorded deference unless the reviewing court believes the findings to be clearly wrong. *Muscatell v. Cline*, 196 W. Va. 588, 474 S.E.2d 518 (1996)." Syllabus Point 1, *Reed v. Pompeo*, 240 W. Va. 255, 810 S.E.2d 66 (2018).

B. Mr. Null did not demand a blood test, and in so finding, the circuit court substituted its judgment for that of the fact finder and improperly demonstrated a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence.

It is a critical fact in this case that the OAH found that Mr. Null did not demand a blood test but as the OAH found, he acquiesced to the Investigating Officer's request for a blood test: "[b]ecause the Investigating Officer suspected [Mr. Null] was under the influence of controlled substances and/or drugs, he requested [Mr. Null] submit to a blood draw" and "[a]lthough in the

present case, [Mr. Null] did not initiate the blood draw. . ." (App. at P. 158.) In order to reach its result-oriented decision, the circuit court, however, concluded that "it appears from the testimony of Mr. Null, the only witness to testify at the hearing below, that he, and not the Investigating Officer, requested the blood draw. This Court is hesitant to disregard the live testimony of an individual placed under oath in favor of a piece of paper." (App. at P. 7.)

It is well-established that "findings of fact by the administrative officer are accorded deference unless the reviewing court believes the findings to be clearly wrong." Syl. Pt. 1, *Muscatell v. Cline*, 196 W. Va. 588, 474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). *See also, Frazier v. Corley*, No. 18-1033, 2020 WL 1493971, at *3 (W. Va. Mar. 26, 2020) (memorandum decision); Syl. Pt. 1, *Frazier v. S.P.*, 838 S.E.2d 741 (W. Va. 2020); Syl. Pt. 1, *Reed v. Winesburg*, 241 W. Va. 325, 825 S.E.2d 85 (2019). The circuit court's reversal of the OAH's factual finding was based upon a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence, which has been prohibited by this Court. *See, Groves v. Cicchirillo*, 225 W. Va. 474, 481, 694 S.E.2d 639, 646 (2010) (concluding that "the lower court's view of the evidence revealed a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence. Our law recognizes no such distinction in the context of drivers' license revocation proceedings.) *See also, Dale v. Dingess*, 232 W. Va. 13, 17, 750 S.E.2d 128, 132 (2013) (concluding that "the circuit court was incorrect when it elevated Ms. Dingess's hearing testimony over the testimony of Deputy Hess that was in agreement with his contemporaneous documentary evidence recorded on the DUI Information Sheet.")

The factual finding regarding who requested the blood draw is relevant because W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) makes a demand for a test by an arrestee a predicate to the Investigating Officer's duty to facilitate the test. West Virginia Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) mandates that a suspected impaired

driver "shall have the right to demand" a test of his "blood or breath" and that analysis of the test "shall be made available" to the arrestee upon demand. The Legislature's use of the word "shall" in this context makes this directive to the appealing party mandatory. See, e.g., Syl. pt. 1, Nelson v. W. Va. Pub. Emps. Ins. Bd., 171 W. Va. 445, 300 S.E.2d 86 (1982) ("It is well established that the word 'shall," in the absence of language in the statute showing a contrary intent on the part of the Legislature, should be afforded a mandatory connotation."); Syl. pt. 2, Terry v. Sencindiver, 153 W. Va. 651, 171 S.E.2d 480 (1969) ("The word 'shall' in the absence of language in the statute showing a contrary intent on the part of the legislature, should be afforded a mandatory connotation."). The requirements in statute and case law flow from a driver exercising his right to demand a blood test.

Here, the blood sample was the Investigating Officer's evidence. The absence of an analysis results in there being no blood test evidence in the record. It should not be determinative of the case. The drawing of the blood did not create an extra right for Mr. Null, as the OAH concluded in its final order. (App. at P. 156-162.) The OAH breezed by the fact that Mr. Null did not request the test and relied on this Court's decisions in *Reed v. Hall, supra*, and *Reed v. Divita, supra*, to erroneously conclude that "individuals who voluntarily submit to a blood sample at the request of the Investigating Officer should be afforded the same due process as those who demand a blood test. Failure of an officer to obtain a blood test analysis after said test was 'demanded' by the driver was a denial of the driver's due process rights under West Virginia Code § 17C-5-9. *Reed v. Hill* [sic], 235 W. Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 666 (2015)." (App. at P. 159.)

The circuit court similarly relied on *Hall* and *Divita* in erroneously determining that to conclude that "Mr. Null was denied the ability to present potentially exculpatory evidence of his blood and was, therefore, denied his due process rights under W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 when the

blood sample analysis was cancelled before the testing was completed." (App. at P. 7.)

Because the OAH found that Mr. Null did not demand or request a blood draw on the date of his arrest, W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) is not applicable to this case. This Court has held that "[w]hen a driver asserts that his or her right to a blood test requested pursuant to W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (1983) has been violated, the burden of proof is on the driver to show he or she *made the request* in compliance with the conditions set forth in the statute for making that request." Syl. Pt. 3, *Dale v. Painter*, 234 W. Va. 343, 765 S.E.2d 232 (2014) (emphasis added). Furthermore, "a request for a blood test made pursuant to W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (1983) must be made *to the investigating officer* or officers." Syl. Pt. 8, *Dale v. Painter*, 234 W. Va. 343, 765 S.E.2d 232 (2014). [Emphasis added.] The OAH found that Mr. Null did not request or demand a blood test. Therefore, *Hall* and *Divita* are distinguishable in that the drivers in those cases demanded or requested to submit to a blood draw on the date of the arrest.

Further, Mr. Null did not demand analysis of the blood. There was no analysis. "The analysis disclosed by such chemical test shall be made available to such arrested person forthwith upon demand." W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013). "The requirement that a driver arrested for DUI must be given a blood test on request does not include a requirement that the arresting officer obtain and furnish the results of that requested blood test.' Syl. Pt. 3, *In re Burks*, 206 W. Va. 429, 525 S.E.2d 310 (1999). *Hall*, 235 W. Va. at 324, 773 S.E.2d at 668, syl. pt. 6." *Frazier v. Hussing*, No. 19-0056, 2020 WL 533965, at *3 (W. Va. Feb. 3, 2020) (memorandum decision). There is no basis for recision of the revocation due to the lack of evidence of an officer requested blood test result.

Nothing in W. Va. Code § 17C-5A-1 (2008) provides for anything except mandatory revocation when a person is deemed to have committed the offense of DUI. The DMV mandatorily revokes when,

"upon examination of the written statement of the officer and the tests results described in subsection (b) of this section, the commissioner determines that a person committed an offense described in section two, article five of this chapter. .." W. Va. Code § 17C-5A-1(c) (2008). Despite Mr. Null's right to demand and receive a blood test pursuant to W. Va. Code §17C-5-9 (2013), which the OAH determined did not occur here, there is no reward to a driver whose test is not analyzed. The circuit court erred in extending this Court's judicially created remedy for a purported violation of W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013).

Hall, supra and Divita, supra, although inapplicable here, are further distinguishable because the OAH found as fact that Mr. Null admitted to smoking a bowl of marijuana and being under the influence of marijuana. (App. at PP . 143, 146, 157 at FOF 6.) The drivers in both Hall and Divita directly refuted to the officer that they were under the influence. Given Mr. Null's clear admission to the Investigating Officer that he had smoked marijuana prior to driving, there was no "exculpatory evidence" to present and no denial of his due process rights as determined by both the OAH and the circuit court.

Accordingly, the OAH and the circuit court incorrectly applied *Hall*, *Divita*, and W. Va. Code §17C-5-9 (2013) as being applicable in this matter because Mr. Null did not request or demand a blood draw and test from the Investigating Officer on the date of the arrest. Further, the circuit court improperly substituted its judgment for that of the fact finder and demonstrated a preference for testimonial evidence over documentary evidence.

C. This court's judicially created remedy for violations of W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 (2013) in *Reed v. Hall* and *Reed v. Divita* should be reversed because it thwarts the purpose of the administrative sanctions for DUI and lets impaired drivers avoid license revocations by excluding all relevant evidence of DUI.

Assuming, *arguendo*, that *Hall* and *Divita* apply to an officer requested blood draw case, the remedy applied by the circuit court for the violation of a criminal statute was not provided by the

Legislature, and the rescission of the license revocation solely on the basis that Mr. Null did not receive a blood analysis thwarts the purpose of the administrative license revocation proceeding when the undisputed evidence proves that he committed the offense of DUI.

1. Hall and Divita should be overruled because they conflate the more stringent remedies appropriate for criminal actions with those more appropriate for administrative proceedings and undermine important efforts to protect the public from unsafe drivers.

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