I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

OVERVIEW 

This case involves a motorist who after being arrested for driving under the influence of 

controlled substances, agreed to a blood test at Thomas Memorial Hospital to determine what 

amount, if any, controlled substances were in his system at the time of his arrest. However, due 

exclusively to the negligence of the State of West Virginia, the blood sample was destroyed and 

never tested or analyzed. App. 2071
• Consequently, the Office of Administrative Hearings 

(OAH) reversed the Order of Revocation previously issued based upon the violation of 

i Respondent's right to Due Process in conjunction with W.Va. Code §17C-5-9. App. 192. 

EVIDENCE AT THE OAH 

Several case determinative facts are uncontested in this case. After his arrest for impaired 

driving on May 26, 2014 by West Virginia State Trooper J.S. Pauley, Respondent was taken to 

Thomas Memorial Hospital for a blood test. App. 145. 

The arresting officer noted on his D.U.I. Information Sheet that he requested Respondent 

produce a blood sample for testing, which Respondent willingly complied. Id. The Respondent 

testified that he actually requested the blood test first and the arresting officer agreed to take him 

for a test. App. 213. Regardless, Respondent was cooperative, did not refuse to provide a blood 

sample and sought the results of the test afterward. App. 145,213. 

A blood test was effectuated and the blood sample was-delivered to the West Virginia 

State Police Crime Lab. App. 145. It is uncontested that the arresting officer maintained 

complete custody and control over the blood sample from the time it was produced until it was 

1 App. Refers to the Appendix previously filed in this matter. 
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delivered to the West Virginia State Police Crime Lab. App. 207. 

Likewise, it is uncontested that the blood sample was later destroyed while in the sole 

custody of the West Virginia State Police Crime Lab. Id The destruction of the blood sample 

was solely the fault of the State of West Virginia. Id Respondent is blameless and played no role 

in the destruction of the blood sample. Because of the negligence on behalf of the State of West 

Virginia, the results of Respondent's blood test were never produced. App. 207. 

The Petitioner blames the West Virginia State Police Crime Lab and the Kanawha County 

Prosecuting Attorney's Office for destroying the blood sample at the latter's direction after the 

criminal charges were dismissed. App. 207. However, the Petitioner produced zero evidence to 

explain what steps it took to ensure the blood sample in this case was preserved and tested for the 

administrative purposes. For example, the Petitioner failed to send the West Virginia State 

Police Crime Lab a preservation letter or take any meaningful step to ensure the blood sample 

was preserved for testing. 

Unlike the arresting officer, who failed to appear or testify in this matter despite 

numerous continuances by the Petitioner to secure his presence, the Respondent testified at the 

administrative license revocation proceeding on March 4, 2016 and admitted to speeding but 

denied being impaired the evening of his arrest. App. 212-213. Respondent explained that an 

individual had smoked marijuana in his vehicle earlier in the day which explains why the 

arresting officer smelled marijuana in his vehicle at the time of the traffic stop. App. 219. 

Respondent explained that the answers documented on the post-arrest interview section of the 

D.U.I. Information Sheet were completed by the arresting officer and that he was instructed to 

sign the bottom, which he complied. App. 18. 

2 



On August 15, 2019, the OAH entered a Final Order reversing the Petitioner's Order of 

Revocation previously issued. App. 156. On September 16, the DMV filed a Petition for 

Judicial Review with the Circuit Court of Kanawha County. App. 31. Respondent was prose 

before the Circuit Court of Kanawha County. On February 14, 2020 the circuit court entered its 

Final Order denying the Petition for Judicial Review. 

II. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The lower court followed the law set forth in Reed v. Hall, 235 W.Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 

666 (2015) and Reedv. Divita, No. 14-11081, 2015 WL 5514209 (W.Va. Sept. 18, 

2015)(memorandum decision). The Petitioner cites no changes in the law at the time of 

Respondent's arrest which would render Hall and Divita inapplicable. Instead, Petitioner offers 

the same arguments rejected in both Hall and Divita. 

The Petitioner asks this Court to limit the application of W.Va. Code § 17C-5-9 to 

instances where the driver pro-actively requests a blood test prior to being offered a test by the 

arresting officer. However, neither W.Va. Code § 17C-5-9 nor Hall and Divita require such an 

obligation. Which individual requests the blood test first is irrelevant so long as the driver 

asserts his right to a blood test pursuant W.Va. Code§ 17C-5-9. A private citizen does not forfeit 

a statutory and/or Constitutional right by failing to assert that right before it is offered by law 

enforcement. 

III. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Oral argument is not appropriate because the dispositive issues have been authoritatively 

decided and the decisional process would not be significantly aided by oral argument. 
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IV. ARGUMENT 

A. Standard of Review 

This Court's review of a circuit court's order in an administrative appeal is made pursuant 

to West Virginia Code 29A-6-l. The Court reviews questions oflaw presented de nova and 

findings of fact by the administrative officer are accorded deference "unless the reviewing court 

believed the findings to be clearly wrong." Syl. Pt. 1, Reed v. Hall, 235 W.Va. 322, 773 S.E.2d 

666 (2015). "In cases where the circuit court has amended the result before the administrative 

agency, this Court reviews the final order of the circuit court and the ultimate disposition by it of 

an administrative law case under an abuse of discretion standard and reviews questions of law de 

nova." Syl. Pt. 2, Muscatel/ v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

B. The circuit court correctly affirmed the Final Order of the OAH which 
determined that Respondent's statutory and due process rights were violated 
by the State's destruction of his blood sample prior to testing pursuant to W. Va. 
Code §17C-5-9. 

The holdings in Reed v. Hall, supra, and Reed v. Divita, supra, are directly on-point and 

outcome determinative in this case. Both the OAH hearing examiner and the lower court correctly 

applied the law and found that Respondent's statutory and due process rights were violated by the 

unlawful destruction of his blood sample prior to testing. Petitioner now asks this Court to overrule 

Hall and Divita and authorize the unlawful and prejudicial destruction of blood test evidence prior 

to testing. 

In support of his argument to overrule Reed v. Hall, supra, and Reed v. Divita, supra, the 

Petitioner offers the same arguments presented during the original litigation in those cases. 

Petitioner offers no changes in statute or case law since those cases were decided in 2015 to support 
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his position. 

According to W.Va. Code §17C-5-9, 

"Any person lawfully arrested for driving a motor vehicle in this state 
while under the influence of alcohol, controlled substances or drugs 
shall have the right to demand that a sample or specimen of his or her 
blood or breath to determine the alcohol concentration of his or her 
blood be taken within two hours from and after the time of arrest and 
sample or specimen of his or her blood or breath to determine the 
controlled substance or drug content of his or her blood, be taken 
within four hours from and after the time of arrest, and that a 
chemical test thereof be made. The analysis disclosed by such 
chemical test shall be made available to such arrested person 
forthwith upon demand." 

Moreover, pursuant to W. Va. Code §17C-5A-l(b), upon a DUI arrest, the officer's DMV report 

"shall" include the applicable "results of any secondary tests of blood, breath, or urine." 

As with the driver in Hall, a "chemical test thereof' of the blood sample was never 

performed in this case as required by W.Va. Code §17C-5-9, thus resulting in a deprivation of his 

statutory and due process rights. Hall at 675, 331. The Court's holding in Hall is consistent with 

its prior holding set forth in In re Burks, 2016 W.Va. 429, 525 S.E.2d 310 (1999) which held 

"[a] person who is arrested for driving under the influence who requests and is 
entitled to a blood test, pursuant to W.Va. Code 17C-5-9[1983], must be given the 
opportunity, with the assistance and if necessary the direction of the arresting law 
enforcement entity, to have the blood test insofar as possible meets the evidentiary 
standards of 17C-5-6[1981 ]." 

According to In re Burks, the officer is not required to supply and furnish the results of 

the test following the completed testing. Id. However, the Court noted"[ o ]f course, the arresting 

officer cannot pose an impediment to the driver's obtaining the results of and information about 

the test." Id. 
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In Hall, the driver requested the blood test after refusing a secondary chemical test of the 

breath. The investigating officer submitted the blood sample to the West Virginia State Police 

Crime Lab for testing. However, due to limitations at the Lab at the time, it was returned to the 

investigating officer and remained untested. Id. at 332, 676. The Commissioner unsuccessfully 

argued that the officer had no obligation to have the blood tested. Rejecting the Commissioner's 

argument, the Court concluded that the officer must ensure that the blood sample is both 

collected and tested when a motorist requests a blood test in an impaired driving case. Id. at 333, 

677. 

In this case, the State of West Virginia is solely to blame for the destruction of 

Respondent's blood sample prior to testing. The Petitioner admits that at all times prior to its 

destruction, the sample of Respondent's blood was in the sole custody and control of the State of 

West Virginia. The Petitioner took no action to ensure the blood sample was preserved, tested 

and made available to Respondent upon demand while in the custody of the State of West 

Virginia. Instead, the Petitioner grasps for excuses as to why destruction of the Respondent's 

blood sample was justified, ranging from the dismissal of criminal charges to a failure to 

coordinate with the Kanawha County Prosecuting Attorney's Office and the West Virginia State 

Police Crime Lab. 

Contrary to the Petitioner's claim, he was also negligent in failing to ensure the 

Respondent's blood test evidence was tested. No memorandum, letter or notice of pending 

action was presented in this case to establish that the Petitioner informed the Lab of its separate 

pending action and interest in the blood test results prior to the blood sample being destroyed 

several months after Respondent's arrest. 
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In an effort to lobby this Court to overturn Hall and Divita, the Petitioner yet again argues 

that W.Va. Code § 17C-5-7 is a criminal statute and that reversing an order of revocation based 

upon a violation of a criminal statute equates to applying the judicially-created exclusionary rule 

to the administrative process. Contrary to the self-serving efforts of Respondent to mold the 

argument sub judice into one implicating an exclusionary rule analysis, the instant issue is merely 

one involving the simple application ofW. Va. Code §17C-5-9. The Commissioner conflates 

the issue of deprivation of due process caused by the violation of the statutory requirement set 

forth in W.Va. Code §17C-5-9 and W. Va. Code §17C-5A-l(b) with the application of the 

judicially-created exclusionary rule to circumstances where the relevant statute does not require 

an action. 

For example, the Court addressed the application of the judicially-created exclusionary 

rule to instances where an officer violated a driver's Fourth Amendment right to be free from 

illegal search and seizure at a time when W.Va. Code§ 17C-5-2(2008) lacked the requirement for 

an arrest to be lawful. Miller v. Toler, 229 W.Va. 302, 729 S.E.2d 137 (2012). The Court held 

that absent the statutory requirement that an arrest be lawful, the Court will not extend a 

judicially created exclusionary rule to create a remedy in the administrative process2
• Miller v. 

Toler, 229 W.Va. 302, 729 S.E.2d 137 (2012). 

The Petitioner cites cases throughout the United States where courts have refused to apply 

a judicially-created exclusionary rule to instances involving unlawful traffic stops as set forth in 

2 In 2010, the Legislature returned the requirement of a "lawful arrest" to W.Va. Code 
§ 17C-5-2, thus returning the requirement that a traffic stop be lawful in order to effectuate a 
revocation for driving while impaired. Dale v. Arthur, No. 13-0374, 2014 WL 1272550 
(W.Va. March 28, 2014)(memorandum decision) 
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Toler. However, the exclusionary rule is inapplicable to this case because W.Va. Code§ 17C-5-7 

extends the due process right to have a blood test both performed and tested. Respondent's claim 

that the lower court is authorizing the application of the exclusionary rule in a civil hearing is 

erroneous. Why would the lower court apply the judicially created exclusionary rule when doing 

so is unnecessary in light of the Legislature's creation of a legislatively created exclusionary 

rule? 

Moreover, even though the purpose of the administrative sanction oflicense revocation is 

to protect the public, the administrative process must comply with the requirements of due 

process of law. "A driver's license is a property interest and such interest is entitled to protection 

under the Due Process Clause of the West Virginia Constitution." Abshire v. Cline, 193 W.Va. 

180,455 S.E.2d 549 (1995). 

Ignoring the prejudice suffered by Respondent to having his blood sample destroyed, 

Petitioner urges this Court to adopt the impossible task of weighing the destroyed blood test 

evidence along with all the other remaining evidence in the case. There exists no single piece of 

evidence with greater significance in a DUI case than a secondary test of the blood, especially 

where one party denies under oath consuming any controlled substance or drugs the day of his 

arrest. App. 213. Respondent demanded a blood test, commissioned an attorney to challenge the 

revocation of his driver's license and denied under oath the charge that he consumed controlled 

substances while driving. 

As a result of the failure of the Petitioner and the West Virginia State Police Crime Lab to 

preserve and test Respondent's blood sample, the Respondent suffered actual and extreme 

prejudice. The blood sample was the only available piece of objective evidence which would 
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determine whether the Respondent had controlled substances in his system. Respondent 

willingly submitted to a blood sample and encouraged the DMV to obtain the results of the blood 

test prior to the administrative hearing, which was continued multiple times in order to secure the 

blood test evidence. 

Logically speaking, why demand a blood test or agree to an adversary's request for 

toxicology results if Respondent did not want the blood test results introduced at the hearing? 

Respondent's conduct proves that he wanted and expected the subpoenas to have the blood test 

results at the hearing. 

"While the precise statutory standards vary by state, other jurisdictions have also adhered 

to the central theme that an officer may not unreasonably impede the right to the blood test 

requested by the driver. See, e.g., State v. Smerker, 332 Mont. 221, 136 P.3d 543 (2006)." FN 10 

Reed v. Hall, supra. Also, the underlying case is even more extreme than that decided in People 

v. Newberry, 166111.2d 310,652 N.E.2d 288 (1995) where a lab technician, not knowing that the 

State intended to bring additional criminal charges, inadvertently destroyed a drug sample 

incriminating the accused because he mistakenly believed the case had been dropped. 

The court in Newberry ruled that the destruction of evidence violated the accused 

fundamental due process rights because he lacked a means to procure comparable evidence 

which was critical to his defense. Id at 291, 316. The court in Newberry described the State's 

claim that the accused was not without recourse because he could still assail the State's field 

evidence and original test evidence as "illusory." Id 

The same conclusion was reached in United States v. Cooper, 983 F.2d 928 (1993). In 

Cooper, DEA agents seized and later destroyed the accused's lab equipment which it alleged was 
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used for illegal methamphetamine production. Id. The court concluded that no comparable 

alternative means of defending himself existed. Id. at 932. The Cooper court stated the accused 

"should not be made to suffer because the government agents discounted their version and, in 

bad faith, allowed its proof, or its disproof, to be buried in a toxic waste dump." Id. 

The Petitioner attempts to distance himself from holding set forth State v. Osakalumi, 194 

W.Va. 758,461 S.E.2d 504 (1995) where the State's unlawful destruction of critical evidence

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